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Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of Central Bombay Cable Network Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financiat Statements

QOpinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Central Bombay
Cable Network Limited (‘the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

[ our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 ("Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in confonmnity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind
AS’} specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs {financial position) of the
Company as at 31 March 2021, and its profit/loss {financial performance including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are Further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'} together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter(s)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current pericd. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

BRANCH OFFICE(S): DUBAI(UAE) & SAGAR (MP)

@ KANPUR (UP) & GURUGRAM (HR)



5. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report,
Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

7. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

8. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

9. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for averseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

11. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of matérial misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3}(1) of the Act,
we are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Hvaluate the apprepriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinioen. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.

« However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern. '

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
inctuding the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during cur audit.
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14,

15,

16,

17.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with themn all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16} of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration
to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and lmits laid down under
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure I a
statement on the matters specified in'paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Further to our comments in Annexure I, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of cur
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for
the purposes of our audit have been received from the branches not visited by us;

¢} the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified
- under section 133 of the Act;

e} on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) we have also audited the interna} financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the
Company as on 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial




statements of the Company for the year ended on that date as per Annexure I expressed
unmodified;

8) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended}, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  there are no pending litigaticns of the company as at 31 March 2021;

ii.  the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2021;

iii. ~ there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021;

iv.  the disclosure requirements relating te holdings as well as dealings in specified bank
notes were applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016,
which are not relevant to these standalone financial statements. Hence, reporting
under this clause is not applicahle.

ForAAAM&CO LLP

{(Formerly Known as AAAM & Co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS)
FRN: 08113€/C400292

AARELST S

(CA RAHUL GURTA, FCA)
PARTNER
M. No. 419625
UDIN: 21419625AAAAI07857

DATE: 22.06.2021
PLACE: NOIDA
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Ammexure 1

Independent Auditor’'s report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

1. In conjunction with cur audit of the standalone financial statements of CENTRAL BOMBAY
CABLE NETWORK LIMITED (“the Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2021,
we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the
company of as of that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal
Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on Internal contro! over financial reporting criteria established by
the respective company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the
Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {“ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financia! controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Aunditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 1IFCoFR based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI") prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of IFCOFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAL These Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCOFR were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
IFCoFR and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an
understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCOFR,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company's [FCOFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reijability of financial reperting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR
include those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future
periods are subject to the risk that the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. Inour opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021,
based oninternal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note™)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {“ICAI").

ForAAAM&ECOLLP

{Formerly KnownasAAAM & Co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS)
FRN: 08113C/C400292

o e
(CA RAHUL GUPTA, FCA)
PARTNER
M. No. 419625
UDIN: 21419625AAAAI07857

DATE: 22.86.2021
PLACE: NOIDA



Central Bombay Cable Network Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

{T in miilion)
Notes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A. Assets
1. Non-cuzrent assets
(=) Financial assets
(i) Investments 3 0.39 0.39
(b) Other non-current assets 4 - 39.56 39.56
Sub-total of Non-current assets 39.95 39.95
2. Current assets
(a} Financial assets
(i) Cash and bank balances 5 0.04 0.04
(it) T.oans 6 - -
(b) Other cutrent assets 7 2.47 247
Sub-total of Current assets 2.50 2.51
Total assets 42.45 42.45
B. Equity and Habilities
Equity
(2) Equuty share capital 8 0.50 .30
(b} Other equity 9 {18.55) {1847
Sub-total - Equity (18.05) (17.97)
Liabilities
1. Non-current liabilities
{) Financial Habilities
{i) Long-term hotrowings - -
(b) Provisions 10 .20 0.44
Sub-total - Non-current liabilities 0.20 0.44
2. Current liabtlities
{a) Financial liabifities
(1) ‘Frade payables 1 3.10 302
() Other current liabilities 12 57.21 56.96
Sub-toral of current labilities 60.30 59.98
Total equity and liabilities 42.45 42.45
Summary of significant accounting policies 1-2.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of rhese financial statements.
This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.
ForAAAM&COLLP For and on behall of the Boacd of Diccetors of
{Formerly known as A A A M & Co,, CENTRAL BOMBAY CABLE NETWORK LTD.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS)

FRN: 08113C/C400292
UDIN: 21419625AAAATO7857.

L(j/ ijg‘ ! éi’;“gij E’é:\%?z /

{CA RAHUL GUPTA; FC )_'_ T - GAJENDRA JAIN Ro\}}vASH JAIN
PARTNER T (DIN: 07883787 ) (DIN: 09210462)
M. No-419625 DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DATE: 22.06.2021
PLACE: NOIDA



Central Bombay Cable Network Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended Match 31, 2021

Notes
Revenue
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total revenue

Expenscs

Cost of matetials consumed

Purchases of traded goods

Carniage sharing, pay channel and related costs

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Other cxpenses 13
Total expenses

Loss befote prior pertod expenses

Prior period expenses
Loss before and after tax

Loss per share after tax () 14
Basic
Diuted

Summary of significant accounting policies 1-2.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

March 31, 2021

(€ in mitlion)
March 31, 2020

(1.73)
(1.73)

(1.94)
(1.94)

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date

ForAAAM& COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Birectors of

(Formerly known as AAAM & Co,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTAN’I‘S)
FRN: 08113C/ C400292 .

LiRL.

+

P

/

(CARAHUL GUPTA, cay GAJENDRA JAIN
PARTNER (DIN: 07883787 )
M.No-419625 DIRECTOR

DATE: 22.06.2021
PLACE: NOIDA

CENTRAL BOMBAY CABLE NETWORK LTD.
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Central Bombay Cable Network Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2021

(T in million}
Pacticulars March 31,2021 March 31,2020
A Cash flow from operating Activities
Net Income/(l.oss) Before tax (0.09) {0.10)

Adjustment For:
Lepreciation
Loss on sale /disposal of assets -
I’revision for doubtful debts - -
Interest Expenses/ (Tacome) -

Transfer from Deferred Activation Revenae - -
Less: Profit on sale of assets - -
income T'ax Paid
Comprehensive income recognised directly v retained carnings - -
Provision of Income Taxes {including deferred tax) .
Operating Profit before working capital changes (0.09) {0.10}
Increase Inventorics -
Deetease/(Inerease) in trade receivables - -
Decrease/ (Increasc) in Loag Terms T.&A and non Current Assets - -

Diecrease/ (Tncrease) in Loans and Advances and Other Current Assets - (0.01)
Increase in long term provisions - -

Increase/{Decrease) in Current Lisbiliies and Provisions 0.00 {0.06}
Increase/(Dectease) in Trade Payables 0.09 0.17
Net Cash flow from operating activitics 0.40 0.00

B Cash Flow from investing activitics
Purchase of fixed asscts -
Capital WILE - -
Sale of Fixed Asscts : - -
Net cash utilised in Investing Activitics - -

C Cash Flow from Financing activities
Intetest Received/ (Paid) (Net) - -
Procecds from share capital -
Repayment of long term borrowing -
MNet Cash provided by financing activitics - -

Net Increase in cash and cahs cquivalents during the year 0.00 0.00
Cash and cash equivalents ae beginning of year 0.04 0.04
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 0.04 3.04
Note : ¥ in million)

a Component of Cash & Cash equivalents at the end of year March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Cash in hand - -
Balance with Scheduled Banks in Current Accounts 0.04 0.04
0.04 0.04

This is the statement of Cash Flow referred to in out report of even date

ForAAAMECOLLPE For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

(Fommerly knowmn as AAAM & Co,, CENTRAL BOMBAY CABLE NETWORK LTD.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT. S}

FRN: 0613C/C00292 .~ / . o
A1 A
el ke N
- A
(CA RAHUL GUPTA, FCA} f GAJENDRA JAIN ROHTASH JAIN
PARTNER RS (DIN: 07863787 ) (DIN: 09210462)
M. No-419625 DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DATE: 22.06.2G21
PLACE: NOIDA



NOTE —1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31*MARCH, 2621

1.1 CORPORATE INFORMATION:

Central Bombay Cable Network Limited (hereinafter referred to as the *Company’) is registered in New
Delhi. The Company is in the business of providing cable TV services to the end consumers.

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.For all
periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company prepared its financial statements
in accordance accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP) These financial
statements are the first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS. The accounting policies have
been consistently applied by the Company. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and
non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule HI of
the Act. Based on the nature of business and the time between the acquisition of assets and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and Habilities.

1.3 USE OF ESTIMASTES:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses for the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and undertying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized
prospectively in the current and future periods.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those fixed assets which necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized.

1.4 RECOGNITION OF REVENUE:

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and it can
be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/receivable net of
rebates and taxes. The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria to each separately identifiable
component of the sales transaction. Subscription income is recognized on completion of services and
when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration that will be derived.
However, during the current period, the company does not have any revenue from operations.

1.5 RECOGNITION OF INCOME AND EXPENSE:

Items of income and expenditure are recognized on accrual basis.

1.6 PLANT, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Plant, properties and equipments are carried at the cost of acquisition or construction less accurnulated
depreciation, The cost includes non-refundable taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses related
to the acquisition and installation of the respective assets.




Deprectation / amortization on plant, properties and equipments is provided at rates computed on the basis
of useful life of assets as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except in case of intangible
assets and leasehold improvements on which depreciation is provided at rate as mentioned below which in
view of the management represents the useful {ife of assets. Assets costing less than Rs 5,000 each, are
depreciated mn full excluding residual value as per Schedule If, in year of purchase.

Asset category Rate of depreciation/ amortization

Intangible assets Straight Line Method
Leasehold improvements  Over the lease term or useful life whichever is lower

However, during the current year no deprectation has been provided as the Company does not have any
tangible assets. '

1.7 INVESTMENTS:

Non-current investiments are carried at cost less any other-than-temporary diminution in value, determined

separately for each individual investment.
Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value

is done separately in respect of each category of invesiment.

1.8 INVENTORIES:

1.9

1.10

1.11

UL

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprises all cost
of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

However, the company does not have any inventory during the current year.

INCOME TAXES:

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting
income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

During the current year, the company has incurred losses and hence there is no tax liability.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE:

Events occurring after balance sheet date which affect the financial position to a material extent are taken
into cognizance, if any. '

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

* Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Group or

* Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.
Contingent-Liabilities are generally not provided for in the accounts are shown separately under notes to

the accounts if any.




Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually
certain, related asset is recognized.

NOTE - 2: EXPLANATORY/ CLARIFICATORY NOTES:

2.1 No dividend has been proposed by the Directors of the Company due to the loss of the company.
2.2 Balances of sundry creditors and debtors are subject to confinmation from the respective parties,

2.3 In the opinion of the Board, current assets, loans & advances have a value in the ordinary course of
business at least equat to that stated in Balance Sheet.

2.4 Auditors Remuneration:2020-21

SL. PARTICULARS F/Y 2020-21 F/Y 2019-20
NO.
1. AUDIT FEES
{Inclusive of Fees for LR Rs. 66,000/- Rs. 60,080/-
but exclusive of GST)

2.5 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:-

Names of related parties:

SUBSIDIARY OF SNL:

SL. NO. | COMPANY REMARKS

1 INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED (ICNCL) SUBSIDIARY OF SNL
SUBSIDIARY OF SNL - ICNCL

2 SITI MAURYA CABLE NET PRIVATE LIMITED HOLDS SHARES OF ST MAURYA
SUBSIDIARY OF SNL - ICNCL

3 INDINET SERVICE PRIVATE LIMITED HOLDS SHARES OF INDINET
SUBSIDIARY OF SNL - CBCNL

4 MASTER CHANNEL COMMUNITY NETWORK PVT LTD HOLDS SHARES OF MASTER
CHANNEL

5 SIT) VISION DIGITAL MEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED SUBSIDIARY OF SNL

8 SITI SIRI DIGITAL NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED SUBSIDIARY OF SNL

7 SITI GUNTUR DIGITAL NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED SUBSIDIARY OF SNL

8 SITI GLOBAL PRIVATE LIMITED SUBSIDIARY OF SNL

9 STTI SAGAR DIGITAL CABLE NETWORK PRIVATELIMITED | SUBSIDIARY OF SNL

10 SIT! SAISTAR DIGITAL MEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED SUBSIDIARY OF SNL

11 SITI PRIME UTTARANCHAL COMMUNICATION PRIVATE | ¢ jneinn v o an

LIMITED

12 VARIETY ENTERTAINMENT PRIVATE LIMITED (VEPL) SUBSIDIARY OF SNL

13 SITI FACTION DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED SUBSIDIARY OF SNL

14 SITICABLE BROADBAND SOUTH LIMITED SUBSIDIARY OF SNL

15 WIRE AND WIRELESS TISAl SATELLITE LIMITED SUBSIDIARY OF SNL

16 | SITI BROADBAND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED (SBSPL) | SUBSIDIARY OF SNL




17 SITIJIND DIGITAL MEDIA COMMUNICATIONS PRIVATE SUBSIDIARY OF SNL
LIMITED
18 SITi JAI MAA DURGEE COMMUNICATIONS PRIVATE SUBSIDIARY OF SNL
LIMITED
19 SITI KARNAL DIGITAL MEDIA NETWORK PRIVATE SUBSIDIARY OF SNL
LIMITED
20 FACTION DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED SUBSIDIARY OF SNL
21 SITI JONY BIGITAL CABLE NETWORK FRIVATE LIMITED SUBSIDIARY OF SNL
22 ST KRISHNA DIGITAL MEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED SUBSIDIARY CF SNL
SUBSIDIARY OF SNL - SBEPL
23 E-NET ENTERTAINMENT PRIVATE LIMITED HOLDS SHARES OF E-NET
ENTERTAINMENT
ASSOCIATE OF SNL
SL. NO. | COMPANY REMARKS
1 C&S MEDIANET PRIVATE LIMITED ASSCICATES OF SNL
ASSOICATES OF SNL - VEPL
2 E»:.ARI?QADOUNT DIGITAL MEDIA SERVICES PRIVATE HOLDS SHARES OF PARAMOUNT
DIGITAL
LLP OF SNL
SL. NO. | COMPANY REMARKS
1 SITI NETWORKS INDIA LLP WHOLLY OWNER LLP OF SNL
Other Related Parties:

2.6 Transactions entered into by the Company with its holding company during the relevant Financial

Year are as under:

- Sale/ purchase of goods and services

Amount Amount
Amount . owed by owed to
Year ended Received Amount Paid related related
parties parties
Holding Company
March 31, - - - _
Siti Cable Network 2021
Limited March 31, - - - -
2020
Fellow Subsidiary
. March 31, - - - .
Variety 2001
Entertainment Pvt
Lid March 31, - - - -
2020




2.7 The basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year by

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear.

Particulars 31-March-2621 31-March-2020
Profit/(Loss) after Tax {86558) (12183)
Number of Equity Shares 50,000 50,000
Nominal Value of Equity Shares 10 10
Basics Earnings per Share | (1.73) {0.24)

2.8 Other disclosures are made as under :

i. Valueof Import on CIF Basis - NIL
ii.  Expenses in Foreign Currency - NIL
iti.  Amount remitted in Foreign Currency - NIL
iv.  Earnings in Foreign Currency - NIL
For AAAM& COLLP, For & on Behalf of the Board of Directors

(FORMERLY Knownas AAAM& Co. CENTRAL BOMBAY CABLE NETWORK LIMITED

CHARTERED ACCOUN'I_‘ANTS)
N é‘* i :«;3/
Q%/ v mﬁ

FRN: 08113(3."(3400292
(CA RAHUL GUPTA, FCA)".’."'- GAJENDRA JAIN ROHTASH JAIN

PARTNER DIRECTOR BIRECTOR
M.No0.419625 DIN No. 7883787 DIN No. 09210462

DATE: 22-06-2021
PLACE: NOIDA



Ceniral Bombay Cable Network Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the vear ended March 31,2021

Non-current investmenis (Non trade, unquoted)
Long term investments
{Valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Investment in equity instruments

30,000 (Previous year 30,000) equity shares of T 2 cach fully paid up of
Tndian Cable Net Company Limnited

3,300 (Previous year 3,300) equity shares of T 100 each fully paid up of
Master Channel Community Network Pyt Led.

F.ess : Proviston for diminution i the value of investments

4 Qther non-current assets

Other advances

Varety Enterainment Pvr Lid.
Hamlet Media Network Limited
Security Deposit{CIDSL)

5 Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
{On current accounts

6 Loans and advances

Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Unsecured, considered good
Other advances

7 Other Inans and advances (Unsecured, considered good)

Balances with statutory authorities

Y] Gl

A

(Z in million)

March 31, 2621 March 31, 2020
0.06 0.06
0.33 (.33
0.39 0.39
0.39 0.39
(T in million)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
39.54 39.54
0.02 0.02
39.56 39.56
(¥ in million)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
.04 0.04
0.04 0.04
(€ in million)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(X in million)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
2.47 2.47
2.47 247




Central Bombay Cable Network Limired
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2021

8

19

n

Share capital

Authorised share capital

50,000 (Previous Year: 50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach
Total authorised capital

Issued share capital
50,000 (Previous Year: 50,000) Iquity Shares of Rs, 10 each

Total issucd capital

Subscribed and fully paid up capiral
50,000 (Previous Year: 50,000 Tiquity Shares of Rs. 10 each

Total paid up capital

Other Equity

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Loss for the year
Balance at the end of the year

Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for t'ax
Payable Against Investment

Trade payables

- 'Voral outstanding dues of other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises

Other Current Liabtlitics

Tixpenses Payable
Other Liabilisies

(¥ in million)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
0.50 0.50
9.50 0.50
0.50 0.30
0.50 0.50
0.50 0.50
0.50 0.30
850 .58
(X in million)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(18.47) (18.37)
(0.09) (0.10)
(18.55) (18.47)
(18.55) (18.47)
(% in million)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
- 0.24
0.20 0.20
0.20 0.44
( in million)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
310 3.02
310 3.02
X in million)
Matrch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
0.37 13
56.84 56.83
57.21 56.96




Central Bombay Cable WNetwork Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31,2021

13 Other expenses

Legal, professional and consultancy charges
Auditors' remuneration®

14 Earnings per share

Loss attributable to equity shareholders

Number of weighted average equity shares
Basic

Dituted

Nominal value of per equity share £}

Loss pet share fter tax &)
Basic
Diluted

(€ in million)
March 31, 2621 March 31, 2020
- 0.02
0.09 (.08
0.09 8.10
(% in million)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(0.09) 0.10)
50,000 50,000
50,000 50,000
10 10
(1.73} (1.94)
(1.73) (1.94)
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Tothe Members of Central Bombay Cable Network Limited (Consolidated)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinjon

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Central Bombay Cable
Network Limited (Consolidated) (‘the Holding Company’), which comprisc the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a simmary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinton and to the best of our informaton and accotding to the explanations given to
usthe aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Compantes Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so requited and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepred in India including Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, of the consolidated state
of affairs (consolidated financial posidon) of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and its
consolidated loss {consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income),
its consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in cquity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Group’s ‘Revenue from Operations’ include broadcasters’ share in subscription income from pay
chanuncls, which las correspondingly been presented as an expense which is not in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS-115, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. Flad the management disclosed
the same on net basis, the ‘Revenue from Operations’ and the “Pay channel, carriage shanng and related
cost’ each would have been lower by Rs. 110.1millions and Rs. 469.3millions for the quarter aud vear
ended 31 March 2021 tespectively, while there would have been no impact on the net profit/loss for the
quatter and year ended 310March 2021.

"Furthet, with respect to the above matter, qualifications have been given by other firms of Chartered
Accountants vide their review reports dated 22.06.2021, on the financial results of the subsidiarics of the
Holding Company, namely, Master Channel Community Netwotk Pvt. Ltd., and is reproduced by us
as under, with the aggregate amount pertaining to such subsidiatics as included in the above paragraph.

Our review report for the quatter and nine month period ended 31 December 2020 was also qualified
with respect to this matter. '

BRANCH OFFICE(S): DUBAI(UAE) @ SAGAR(MP) @ KANPUR (UP)

LI

(LLPIN: AAT - 1669)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
REGD. OFF.; A-58,1st FLOOR, SECTOR-65, NCIDA-201 301 (U.P)
Tel: +91 120 2406700; Fax: +91 120 2406443
E-mail: atul@aaaca.in; Visit us : www.aaaca.in

& GURUGRAM (HR)



4. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standatds on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards arc further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘TCAT") together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requitements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainedis
sufficient and appropsiate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matter

5. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the curtent period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

6. We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
theteon

7. 'The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Other
information does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditot’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on.the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the othet information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements ‘ot our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

" If, based on the work we have pecformed on the other information obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other
information is obtained at the date of this auditot’s report.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with tespect to the prepatation of these consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs (consolidated financial position),
consolidated. profit or loss (consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its
associates and joint ventures in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of
Directors/management of the companies included in the Group and its associates and joint




10.

i1,

ventures are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irtegulatities; sclection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
ctfectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and failr
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been
used for the purpose of preparation of the consoclidated financial statements by the Directors of
the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In ptepating the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concetn, disclosing, as applicable, matters-related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease opetations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also tresponsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s teport that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of

~ assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on

12,

Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can atise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
cofisolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatcment of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or errot, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a matetial misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from etror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the holding company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

»  Evaluate the appropiateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting cstimates and related disclosures made by management.




¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit cvidence obmined, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events ot conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue 28 a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we - are
requited to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinton. Our conclusions ate based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as'a going concern.

* Bwvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

13. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and dming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

14. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

15. From the matters communicated with those chatged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
exiremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
teport because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication. '

Other Matter

16.We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiaty, whose financial statements reflect(s)
- total assets of i1705.4 million and net asscts of 598 millions as at 31 March 2021, total revenues
of i-765.3 million and net cash inflows amounting to [1-84.75millions for the year ended on that
date, as consideted in the consolidated financial statements. {The consolidated financial
statements also include the Group’s share of net loss (including other comprehensive income) of
-1 30.5millions for the year ended 31 March 2021, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose teport(s) have
been furnished to us by the management and our opinicn on the consclidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosutes included in respect of the
subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section (3} of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it
telates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, is based solely on the reports
of the other auditors.




Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and
regularory requirements below, ate not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done by and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requitements

17. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuncration to
its respective directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. '

18. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

4)

d)

¢

f)

2

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessaty for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
afotesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appeats from our
examination of those books ;

the consolidated financial statements dealt with by this repott ate in agreement with the
televant books of account maintained for the purpese of prepatation of the consolidated
financial statements;

in our opinion, the afotesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act; '

On the basis of the written tepresentations received taken on record by the Board of
Ditectors none of the directors of the Group companies, its associate companies and joint
venture companies covered under the Act, are disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Holding Company, and its subsidiaty companies, associate companies and joint venture
companies covered under the Act, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our sepatate report in ‘Annexure 017

With tespect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (a5 amended), in our opinion
and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

L. ‘There were no pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 which would impact the
consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and joint ventures;

i.  The company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for _

which there were any material forcseeable losses; and




ii.  there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies, associate
companies and joint venture companies covered under the Act, duting the yeat ended
31 March 2021; ‘

wv. the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank
notes were applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016,
which are not relevant to these consolidated financial statements, Hence, reporting under
this clause is not applicable.

For AAAM & COLLP

(Formerly known as AAAM & Co,,
Chartered Accountants)

- FRN: 08113C/C400292 .- — ..

o

(CA RAHUL GUPTA, FCA) "~/

Partner _ R
Membership No. 419625

UDIN:20419625AAAAIN3788

Place: NOIDA
Date: 23.06.2021
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Annexure 1

Independent Auditot’s report on the Internal Financial Controls undet Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Central Bombay
Cable Network Limited (Consolidated} (“the Flolding Company”) and its subsidiaries, (the
Holding Compaty and its subsidiaties together referred to as “the Group”), its associates and
jointly controlled entities/ joint ventures}as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, we have
audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (1FColR’) of the [Holding
Company, its subsidiary companies, its associate companics and {jointly controlled
companies/ jolnt venture companies}, which are companies covered under the Act, as at thar

daie.
Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Conirols

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary compaties, its
associate companies and jointly controlled companies / joint venture companics, which arc
companies covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on Intetnal control over financial repotting criteria established by the
respective company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {“the
Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuting the orderly and efficient conduct
of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safcguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and ctrors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting rccords, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as

required under the Act.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the INCoFR of the Holding Company, {its
subsidiary companies, its associate companies and jointly controlled companies / joint venture
companies}, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our andit in accotdance with the
Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT)
prescribed undet Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an andit of IFCoFR,

-
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and the Guidance Note on Audit of Intetnal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
{‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICATL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such

controls operated effectively in all matetial respects.

Ouwr audit involves petforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
IFCoFR and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an
understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or ertor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained (and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter(s) paragraph below), is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the IFCoFR of the
Holding Company, {its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and jointly controlled

companies / joint venture companies} as aforesaid.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliabilicy of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes 1n accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR
include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made orﬂy n
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthotised acquisition,
use, of disposition of the company's assets that could have a matetial effect on the financial

statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or
impropet management override of controls, material misstatements due to etror or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future
petiods are subject to the risk that the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies ot procedures may deteriorate.




Opinion

8. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit and
consideration of the reports of the other auditorson internal financial controls with reference
to financial statementsof the subsidiary companies, the following material weakness has been
identified in the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statementsof the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies covered under the Act as at 31 March 2021

‘The internal financial controls over preparation of financial statements with respect to
presentation and disclosureof ‘Revenue from operations’ in accordance with the requirement
of Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’,wete not operating effectively which
has resulted in a material misstatement in the amounts recognisedas Revenue from
operations’ and ‘Pay channel, carriage sharing and related costs’ including the relevant
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, while there is no impact on the net loss
for the year ended 31 March 2021.

9. A ‘matetial weakness’ is a deficiency, or a2 combination of deficiencies, in internal financial
control with reference to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
marerial misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis.

10. In our opinion {and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on
IFCoFR of the subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled
companies/joint ventute companies}, the Holding Company, {its subsidiary companies, its
assoctate companies and jointly controlled companies/joint venture companies}, which are
companies covered under the Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March
2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAL and except for the effects of the material weakness described above
on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, such internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements wete operating effectively as at 31 March 2021.

11. The impact of material weakness identified and reported above has been considéred in
detcrmining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in the audit of the financial
statements of the Molding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
covered under the Act as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, and the material weakness
as mentioned in para 8 has affected our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group and we have issued a qualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Other Matters

12.We did not audit the IFCoFR in so far as it relates to eme subsidiary company, which are
companj-es covered under the Act, whose financial statements/financial information reflect
total assets of Z117 705.4 million and net assets of [* 98 millions as at 31 March 2021, total
revenues of J 765.3 million and net cash inflows amounting to [1-84.75 millions for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. {The consolidated
financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss (including other
comprehensive income} of [ 30.5 millions for the yvear ended 31 March, 2020, which is




company covered under the Act, whose IFCoFR have not been audited by us}. The IFCoFR
in so far as it relates to such subsidiary company have been audited by other auditors whose
report(s) has/have been furnished to us by the management and our report on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the IFCOFR for the Holding Cormpany, {its subsidiary
companies, irs associate companies and jointly controlled companies/ joint venture
companies}, as aforesaid, under Section 143(3)()) of the Act in so far as it relates to such
{subsidiary comparnies, associate companies and jointly controlled companies/ joint venture
companies} is based solely on the reports of the anditors of such compaties. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our teliance on the work done by and
on the reports of the other auditors. '

ForAAAM& COLLP
(Formerly known as AAAM & Co.,
Chartered Accountants)
FRN: '08113(]/0{00@

(CA RAHUL GUPTA, FCA)/

Partner -
Membership No. 419625

UDIN:20419625AAAATN3788

Place: NOIDA
Date: 23.06.2021



Consolidated Central Bombay Cable Network Livnived
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 202t
{¥ in million)
Notes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

A. Assets

1. Non-current assets
Fixed asscts

(a} Property, plant and equipment 3 31229 36923
by Capital work-in-progress 9.50 204
{a) Financial asscts
{i) Investments 4 .06 0.06
fit) T.oans 5 273 272
{iv) Deferced Tax 16 16.80 9.06
{b) Orther non-current assers 6 39.56 39.56
Sub-total of Non-current assets 380.94 429.67
2. Current assets
{a) Financial asscts
{i) "L'rade receivables 7 12131 126.20
{i) Cash and bank balances 8 152.55 237.30
(1) Other Financial Assets 9 13.01 2613
{b) Other current assets 10 7%.69 64.91
Sub-total of Current asscts 366.55 454.54
Total assets 747.50 884.22
B. Equity and habilitics
Equity
{a} Equity sharc capital 11 0.50 0.50
{b) Other cquity 12 45.96 50.26
() Non-controlling interests 13 33.20 35.37
Sub-total - Equity 79.67 86.13
Liabilittes
1. Non-current hiabilities
(2 Financial liabilities
(1) Long-term borrowings 14 858 8.58
by Provisions 15 855 301
(e} Other non-current liabilities 17 - -
Sub-total - Non-current liabilities 17.12 16.58
2. Current liabilities
{a} Financial liabilities
{1) "T'tade payables 18 495.360 627.33
(b) Other current labilities 19 148.26 14574
{c) Provisions 20 7.0 8.43
Sub-total of current liabilities 650.71 781.51
Total equity and liabilities 747.50 884.22
Summary ot sipniticant accounting policics 1-2
The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements,
This is the batance sheet referred to in our report of even date.
ForAAAM & CO LLP Tor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
(Formerly known as AAAM & Co., CENTRAL BOMBAY CABLE NETWORK LTE.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS )
FRN: 08113C/C400292  ~ . o
UDIN: 21419625AAAAFN3788 - Q . W [{i I Rt
fipds, . £ - « ),/\\'?}'
L/@{/ ; / : = | ‘{ @" a/
(CA RAFIUL GUPTA{FCA) GAJENDRA JAIN ROMTASH JAIN
PARTNER . : (DIN: (7883787 ) {DIN: 09216462)
M. Mo-419625 ) . DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DATE: 23.06.2021
PLACE: NOIDA



Consolidated Central Bombay Cable Network Limited
Staternent of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

(% in million)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Notes
Revenue
Revenue from operations 21 765.34 209.01
Other income 22 5.35 8.12
Total tevenue 770.68 817.13
Expenses
Purchascs of traded goods 23 7.26 25.39
Cartiage sharing, pay channel and related costs 24 469.31 451.58
Employee benefits expense 25 29.69 31.03
Finance costs 26 0.08 0.17
Deepreciation and amortisation expenses 27 §8.66 85.06
Other expenses 28 183.96 226.11
Fotal expenses 778,94 819.34
Profit before Exceptional items expenses (8.26) (2.21)
Exceptional items - -
Profit before tax (8.26) (2.21)
Tax Expenses
Current Tax 0.60 7.28
Defetred Tax (7.74) (8.23)
Total Profit/ (Loss) for the petiod (7.12) (1.26)
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit ot loss
{a) Remeasurement of the defined benefit (liabilities) / asscts {0.66} {1.10)

Total Comprehensive Income/ (loss) for the year (6.47) (0.15)
Loss per share after tax () 29

Basic (12.93) {0.31)

Diluted (12.93) (0.31)
Summary of significant accounting policies 1.2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This 1s the staternent of profit and loss refetred to in our repott of cven date
FuAAAM& CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

CENTRAL BOMBAY CABLE NETWORK LTD.

(Formerly known as A AA M & Co.,
CHARTERED A_CCO_UNT_ANT_S}

L3 [

(DIN: 07883787 )

CA RAHUL GUPTA, FCA} - - GAJENDRA JAIN
F1A , J I

PARTNER o

M.No-419625 _ DIRECTOR

DATE: 23.06.2021
PLACE: NOIDA

SN
et

ROHTASH JAIN
(DIN: 69210462)

DIRECTOR



) Consolidated Central Bombay Cable Newwork Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulacs

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Income / ( Losgs ) before Tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Provision for diubtful debts wiitten off

Loss(profit) on sale /disposal of assers

Provision for Doubtful Pebts

Taterest Expense,/{Income}

Less: Trofit on sale of assets

Income Tax paid

comprehensive income recognised directly in retained carnings
PProvision for Income Taxes(including deferred tax)
Operating Profit before working capital changes

Increasce Inventorics

Decrease {increase) i Trade Receivables

Decrease(increase) m Long Terms L&A and non Current Assets
Decreaseftncrease) in Loans and Advances and Other Current Assers
Increase in Long teem provisions

Increase/(Decrease} in Current Liabilides and Provisions

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets

Capital W.L1.

Sale of Fixed Asscrs

Net Cash utilised in Investng Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activitics
Interest Received/ (paid) (Net)

Net Cash provided by Financing Activities

Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents duting the vear
cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the Year

Note :

Component of Cash & cash Equivalents at the end of year :
Cash m hand

FDR's

Balances with Scheduled Banks in Current Accounts

(% in million)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(8.18) (2.11)
88.66 85.06

(4.31) -

- 0.10
5.95 .77
0.08 017

- {0.13)

- 0.42
0.66 (1.10)
1.14 0.33

84.00 40.70
3.24 1.21
(7.73) B.91)
(1.65) (30.78)
0.78 251
(131.12) 21.18
{52.50) 75.91
(31.72) (38.94)
{0.46) 40.56

- 0.76
(32.18) 2.38
(0.08) 0.17)
{0.08) (0.17)
{84.75) 78.12
237.30 159.18
152,55 237.30

(% in million)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
347 3.56
100.00 170.00
49 .08 63.74
152.55 23130

This is the statement of Cash Flow referred to in our teport of cven date

Faor and on behalf of the Boacd of Directors of
CENTRAL BOMBAY CABLE NETWORK LFD.

ForAAAM&COLLP
(Formerly known as A A AM & Co.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS)

FRN: 08113C/C400292 7 ... - - >
g A : . : :' LB
edy AT
£y £ W
(CA RAHUL GUPTA, FCA) . GAJENDRA JAIN ROHTASH JAIN
PARTNER (DIN: 07883787 ) (DIN: 09210462)
M.No-419625 DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DATE: 23.06.2021
PLACE: NOIDA



- CENTRAL BOMBAY CABLE NETWORK LIMITED

1.1

12

Note: 1 Company Overview and Sipnificant Aceounting Policies

Company Overview

Central Bombay Cable Motwork Limited (heeeinafter refecred 1o as the Parent Company’) s repistered sr Now Dethi. Master Channel Community Nerwvork Private Lunited
{heremafter referred to as the Subsidiany Compney) Is regstered in Vijaywada. Both the companies togethier aee hersnafier referred Lo as the ‘Group’ The Croup s engaped
in the bustness of providing cable TV services wthe end consumoers.

Buasgis of preparatinn
‘These fnancial sttements are prepaced on going concern basis in aceordanee with Indian Accounting Standacds (Tnd AS) under the historical cost convention on acerual basis

except for certain financral imstamnents which ave measured at fair values as per the provisions of the Compandes Act, 2013 {(Ael) (o the cxtent notified). The nd AS are
preseribed under Seetion 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indizn Accounging Standards) Rudes, 2015 and Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)

Amendment Rules, 20146,

Accordingly, the Company has prepared Gaancial starements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on 3F March 2030, together with the compurative
period as acand for the year ended 31 March 2019, Accounting policies have been consistently applied exeept where a newly ksued dccounting standard s initially adopted or
a revision o an existing accounting standarcd ecquires o change in the aceouating pobicy hitherto in use.

Summary of Accounting I"olicies

Use of estimace
The peeparadon of Cornpany™s etand'llom [imancil statermnents cequires the use of accounting cstimates which, by definiton, will seldom equal the acrual results, hanapement

KESD ﬂ(.f:dh 0o cxe.rl:]sc ;udgcm{.nr it flpp]}ll'lg ThQ Cnﬂ'ipan}' a ZlCC!JUﬂtiﬂg ]:IOI‘C]LS.

Foreign Currency Translation
Functional and presentation currency
The Conselidated Gnancial statements are presented in cuereney INR, which is alse the functional curcency of the Compaay.

Torign currency transactions are teanslated into the funchonal cursency wsing the exchange rawes prevaking ac the dates of the Leausactions {spot exchange mate).

Foreign exchange guns and losses mesulung from the setdement of such teansactons and rom the remeasurement of monctary ilens denominated in foreign currency at year-
end exchanpe mtes are recagnised in profit or loss.

Non-monctuy items ace not cetranslated at year-end and are measured ac histoncal cost (translued vsing the exchanpe rates at the transaction date), except for non-monctasy
items meusured at fair value which are toanslated wsing the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

Revenue recognition
i) Revenue is secognised when it ts probable that the economic benefits will flow o the Company and 1t can be reliably meusured.

) Revenue is measured ar the fair value of the consideration received/recetvable aet of rehates and taxer. The Company applies the revenue recognition critesta to cach
separately identifiable component of the sales transaction as set oue below,

Revenue from rendering of Services
Subseriptinn income is tecognied on completion of services and when no significant uncertainty evists regardiop the amoune of consideration that will be derived,

Other astworking and manugement income and eardage income are recognised on accomt basis over the terms of related agreements and whes no significant uncertanty
exists regarcding the amouat of consideration that witl be dedved. Carriage revenue recognition is done basis negotmtions / foemal apreement with Lroadeasters cxeept in some
€ages Income carnnge income has been Looked on cash basis.

Advertisement income is reeognised when the related advertisement gets telecasted and when no significant sncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideraton that wilt
be derived. Other advertisement revenue for slot sale is recognised on period basis,

Actvagon and set top boxes pairing charges are recognised 23 revenue to the extent it relates to pairing and transfer of the related boxes and when no significant uncertaintr
vxists reparding ehe amouns of consideration thar wilt be derived and the upfront obligation is discharged. Where part of the revenues collected at the tme of activation refates
to future services o be provided by the Company, a part of acivauon revenye is deferred and recognized over the associated service conteact period or customer life.

Borrowing Costs
Rorrowing cost includes interest, amactization of ancillacy costs incurred in connection with the amranpement of borrawings and exchange diffecences arising from foreign

curreney boecowings to the cxtent they are regarded as an adjustment o the intecest cost

Borgowing costs dircely atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is necessacy to complete
and peepare the asset for uts intended wse or sale. A quakifying asset is one that necessarily akes substantial peniod of ome to ger ready for s intended use. Capitalization of
borconwing costs is suspended in the period during which the active development is delayed due to, other than temporary, interruption. All other borrowing costs are charged
to the Statement of 1"rofit and Loss a5 menrred.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Properiies plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. Fhe cost comprises purchase price {pet of CENVAT Credit availed), borrowing cost if capitalization
criteria aec met and dircedy attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the

purchase price.

When significant parrs of plant and equipment ate required to be replaced at intervals, the Company deprenates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise,
when a major inspection is perlformed, its costis recognised in the caerving amount of the plant and equipment 25 2 eplacement i the recognition critera are satisfred. Adl
athee repaic and masntenance costs are recognised io siatement of profic or loss a3 incurred.

Set top boxes are treated as part of eapital work in progress oll 2t the end of the month of activation thereof.




* CENTRAL BOMBAY CABLE NETWORK LIMITED

MNaote: 1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies

Subsequent measutement (depreciation and useful lives)
1} Deprecution on property, plane and cquipment is provided on the straight-line inethod, compured on the basis of usetul lives prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companics

Act, 213,

Type of assets Useful Life (Years)

Compurer 3
Ol Pyuipments 5
Lilecrneal Equpments 3
Studho Fquipments 13
Furmtnme & Fixtures 10
st Top Boxes 3
Wehicles B 10

i) Leasehokl Improvements  amorntsed over the effective penad of lease.
i) The residual values, useful lives and methad of depreciation of are reviewed ar each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

De-recognition
An stem of property, plant and equipment and any signBcant pare inidally recognised ks derccognived upon dispusal or when ne fumire economic benefils are expected from
its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (ealculared as the difference between the net dispusal proceeds and the carrying amaunt of the asset)

15 included in the income setement when the assers derecognized.

Intangible Assets
fnrangible assets acguired separately ace stated at their cost of acquisition,

Subsequent measurcirent (Amortisation)
Cost of Intanggble Assets are anorlsed under straight line method over the peded of Kfe

Impaitment of nou-financial Assets

The Company assesses at cach Balance Sheel date whetlier there is any indieation that an asset may be impaized. 1€ any such indicadon exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amounk of the assct. T such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash-gencratng unit w which the asset belongs s less than ics
canrying amount, the carrping anount is reduced 1o s recoverable amount, The reduction is treated as an impaicment loss and s recognized in the statement of profic and
loss,

If gt the reparting date, chere 15 an indication that a previously sssessed impairment loss no longer cxists, the reeoverable amount is reassessed and the assel s reflecied at the
recoverable wmount subjeet Lo a maximum of depreciaeed historical cost and the same is accocdingly reversed wn the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

Investments and Other Financial Assets
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financiat assets and fnancial liabilitics are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contiactual provisions of the finzncial insteument and are measured ioitially at

fair value adpsted for teansaction costs.
Financial assets and fnuneial labilides are ofiset and the oet amount i reported in the Balance Sheet if there 15 a curtendy enforceable legal eyt to offset the reeognised
amuounts and there is an intention o settle on a net basts, to realize the assets and seetle the habilites simublaneously,

All other debt instruments are measured are Fair Vabue through othes comprehensive income or Fair vatue through peofit and loss based on Company's busiress modd.

Dre-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial labifity is de-recognised when the obligatton under the Hability &5 dischasged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial Habiliry is replaced by another from the same lender on substanuially dilferent terms, or the terms of an existing Hability are substangally modified,
such an exchange or modification s treated as the de-reeognition of the odginal labiity and the recognition of o new liabilier. The dilference in the espective carrving

arnounts 15 recagmised in the statement of profit or loss.




- CENTRAL BOMEBAY CABLE NETWORK LIMITED}
Note: 1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Palicies
a. Credir risk
Credit risk 45 the sk of Onancial loss w tw Company i a customer or counterpary to a fnancial instiment fads o meet its contractual obligations, and aises poncipally
from the Company’s receivables from custamers. Credir risk is managed through credic spprovals, eseablishing credit Lmits and continuously monkroring the credibworthiness
of custmers by which the Compuny grants ceedic lerms in the normal course of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubrful debts and impairment rhae

represents s estimate of incurred Josses in respeet of trade and other reeetvables and investments.

Credir risk management
Credit cisk rating
The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assees based on follewing catepories arrived on the basis of assurmnptons, inpues and factors specific to the chss of

Fintaneiz] asses.

A Low eredit nsk on fnaneial reporing daee
I: Hligh ercdit cisk

The Company provides for expected credir oss based on the following:

Provision for expected credit loss
12 munth expected coedic hoss
Bused on estimates

Basis of categorisation
lovesoment, Cash and cash
Trade ecceivailes, securiry

Asset group
Lerw eredit dsk

High crodit sk

Based on business enviconment in which tlie Company operates, a default on a financial assct is considered when the counter party fails 1o make paymeats within the ageeed
tme period as per contract. Loss oates reflecting defaudts are based on acwal credit logs experience and considering differences beeween cureene and historical econoniic

conditions,

Credit ratng Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Investment, Cash and cash
equivaients and other

A Low eredin sk finaneial asses excopr 22074 28971
security deposits and
amount cecoverable
Trade recetwables, securiry

I: High ceedit aisk deposits amd amount 137.05 153.05

as al March 31, 2020

recoverible

(2 in million)

Estimated gross carrying

Expected credit

Carrying amount net

Particular smount at default losses ofimp:llhl-mem
provision
Trade recervaliles F39.61 18.30 12i.31
Securiey deposies 273 - 273
Advances recoverable 13.01 - 13.01
ak at March 31, 2019 {T in million)
. Estimated gross carrying  Expected credit Cun}'Lpg :zr‘noum net
Pagticulac of impairment
armnount at defaule losses s x
provision
Trade recervables 142.85 16.66 126.20
Security deposits 272 - 172
Advances recoverble 2613 - 26.13%
Reconciltation of loss allowance provision — Trade recervable, seeurity deposit and accotms recervable
Loss allowance on Apel M, 2048 -
Changes 1o luss allowanee B.88
Loss allowance on March 31, 2019 H.88
Changes in foss allowance T7
Loss allowance on March 31, 2620 16.65
Change in lnss allowance 1.64
1829

Loss allowance on March 31, 2021

(i}Trade and other receivables

‘I'he Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of cach customer. Fhe demographics of the customer, including the defalr dsk of
the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influenee on credit risk assessment. Credat risk 5 managed through credit approvals, estoblishing credit
fimits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the nuemal course of business, An impairment analysis is

performed at each reporting date on 2n individual hasis for major customers.

(ii} Finaneizl assets that are neither past due nor impaired
Credit nsk from balances with banks 2nd financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company™s asscssment of credi risk
abauc particular financial insttution. None of the Company’s cash equivaleats, including teren deposits (Le., certificates of deposit) with banks, were past due or impaired as at
31 March 2020,
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Mote: 1 Company Overview and Signifcant Accounting Policies

b, Liquidity risk

Viquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able o meet irs frmancial obligations as they hecome due. The Company manages Kquidity risk by maintaning adequate
reserved, by continuously monitoring forecast and aclual cash flows and taeching the mawrity profiles of fnaneiat assets and Labilitivs, The Company manages its liquidity sk
by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will abways have sufficient liquidity to mect its Hahitities when due, onder both normal and stressed condinons, without meurring

unzereplable fosses or osk Lo the Company's reputalion.

2021
{T in million)
DParticulars Less than 1 year 1-5 year Total
Boreowings - 4,38 A.58
Fraade payables 31613 176.13 49226
2020
{% in miltion}
Particulars Iess than 1 year 1-5 year Total
Boreowings - .38 358
Trade: payalles 362.57 261.98 624.536

c. Market risk

Market sisk i the visk of toss of futere garmings, Bair values or future cash fows that may result from adveese changes i marcket mires and prices (such as interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates and commodity prices) or i the price of macket risk-sensitive inseruments as o eesult of such adverse changes 1n market rates and prices. Macket sk
13 atteiburable to all market risk-sensitive Bnancial insruments, all foreign curcency receivables and payables and all shocr term and long-term debe. The Company is exposed to
market sk primarily celated to foreign exchange eate sk, interese rare aisk and the marker value of its invesunents, Thus, the Company's exposure to macket risk s a function

of mvesning and borrowing activites and revenue gencranng and operating activitics in feteyn currencics.

d. Enterest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the gisk chat the faie value or future cash Dows of 3 financial mstrument will fucruate because of changes in murket Intecest eales. Long-term borrowings do

nat exposy the company o ask of changes in interesi rates a3 the Company had issued the same at 0%

Tn vicw of the nuture of business, where the necessary documentry evidenee does oot support the payment made/cxpenses ineurred, the same are accounted for on the basis

of certification of the Management.

Figures for the previous year bave been reyrouped / rearranged / recast whenever necessary to confirm for comparison purpose.

Trade ceceivables, Trade payables, Cureene labilitics, Fxpenses Recoverable/payable & other loans # Advances are subject to confirmation and eeconciliation from the parties.

Infermaden required &5 per the Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprises Development e, 2006 small Seate Industrics.
The Company has identified Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises on the basis of information available. As st March 31, 2020 there are no dues to Micro, Stmall and Medium
Ernterposes that are reporeable under the MSMED Acr, 2006,

Cennal Bombay Cable Network Timited (hereieafier referred to as the Pareni Company’) s registered in New Delhi. Mastec Channel Community Network Private Linnted
(hereinafter referred to as the Subsidiany Company} is registered in Vijaywada, Both the companics together are Bereinafter referred to a5 the *Gooup’ The Group ts engaped
in the business of providing cable TV serdces o the ¢nd caonsumers.

Thie company s cateulated the Lenefies provided 1o employees as per aceounting seandards 15, are as under
Defined Benefit Flans

a) Gratuiry Plan

b3 Teave Hacashment

In accordance with Indin Accounting Standards {Ind AS) 19, the aclunal valuation carded out in respect of the aforcsud defined benefir plans is based on the Tollowing

assumption.

Acturial Assumphion Leave Employee Gratity
Encashment Fuml

Discount Rate (P'er annum) 7004 T

50074 BHFew

Rate of Increase in compensation levels
Expected Rate of return on plan assets
Expected Average remaining working Lves of employees {vears) 23.30 23.30
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Change in obligation during the vear ended 31s1 March, 2021

Present Yalue of oblyradon as at Lst Aprit, 2020 297 5.29
Squasition adustrent N -
Tnterese cost 019 0.37
Past service cust - -
Current service cost .53 (.62
Curtabment cost/ (Credin) - -
Setelement cost/{Uredie) - _
Benefits paud {010 117)
Acmamat (gatn}loss on obhgation 0.38) [0.28)
Preseat value of obBgation as ar the end of period (31st March, 2021)

3.1 553
Change in fair value plan Assets Nit Nil
Movement in the lizbility recognized in the Bulance Shecet
Opening nel Bability  (01.04.2020) 2.77) (5.29)
Expense as above .33 371
Benefits paid {0.11) #1179
Actual ceturn on plan agsers - -
Acquisition adjustment - -
Net assets,/ ([ rabiliey) recogrised in Balance Sheet as proviston (31.03.2021) (3.013 (5.83)
Expenses recognised in Profit and Loss Account
Current service cose 033 0.62
PPast service cost - -
Ineecest cost .19 .37
Setthement cost / (credit) - -
Fxpenses recognized in the statement of profit é losses 0.73 0.99
Other comprehensive (income) / expenses (Remeasurement)
Achuarial {gain)/oss - obligation {38 ({128,
Actuarial {pain)/loss - plan assets - -
Foral Actuarial (main) flows {0.38) {0.28)

Acturial Assumption.

The discount rate 15 penerally based upon the market yelds available on Goverament Bonds and satary growth rate mkes seeount of inflation, seniority, promotion and other

relevant factors on long term basis.
Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial pssumptions for the deterenination of the defined benefit obligation are discount eate and expected salury inercase rate. Effect of change in maoctality cage is
negligible. Please note that the seasibivity analysis peeseated below may not be copresentative of the actudd change in the defined benefit obligaton as it is unkikely thac the
change in assumption would occur i isolation of one another as seme of the assumptions may be corretared. The results of semsitivity analysis arce given belows:

Sensitivity Analysis for Graruity

Perod

As on: 373172621

Defined Benefit Obligaton (Base)

5H,29567 g Dalary Incressc Ratc ;| ¥ro, antd

discount rate 7 00%

Liabihty with x% increase in Discount Rate

S4 14077 x=100% [Change 7)Y

Liabiliny wath x%u decrease in Discount Bare

63,03,220; x=1.00" [Change 8]

Liabiliry with x% increase m Salary Growth Rate

62,42, 185, x=1,00% [Change 77 |

Liability with %) decrease in Salary Growth Rate

54.66,701; x=1,00% [Change (6)% |

Liability with =% incecase in Withdrawal Rate 58,68,252; x=1.00% |Change 1% ]
Liability with 1% decrease in Withdrawal Rate 57,82,973; x=1.00% |[Change (1)% }

Sensitivity Analysis for Leave Encashment

Penod

As on: 373172021

Defined Benelit Obligaton Basc)

30,09,274

Liability with x% increase in Diseount Rate

27,853,796, x=1.00%% [Change {T}*]

Liabiiey with %% decrease in Discount Rate

32,68,50% x=1.00% [Change 9% ]

Liability with £% increase in Salary Growth Rate

32,71,251; x=1.00% [Change 905 ]

Liahility with x% docrease in Salary Growth Rate

77.79,798; x=1,00% [Change (8)% |

Linbtity with x% Increase in Withdrawal Rate

3047 462; o= 1.00%% [Change 1% |

Liabihity wich x% decrease in Withdrawal Rate

29,653,704 x=1.00% [Change (1% |

p. Figures buve been rounded off to the nearest rapee.

g. Note 1o 23 form an ntegeal part of the accounts and have bern duly authenticated.
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Fair value messurements {T in million}
A. Financial instruments by ezlegory 31-Mar-2i
NOTES FVTPL Amortised cost
Frnemeal assets
Bank deposits - -
Amount recovieable - -
Tnterest acerued and not due on lxed deposils - -
Secunity deposits - 273
Unbilled revenues - 13.01
Trade regeivables - 121.31
Intvestments (Current, Ananeial assets) - -
Cash and eash equivalents - 15251
Total Anancal assets - 28156
Financial liabibiies
Boerowings (Non-current, financial Habilitics) - 858
Barrowings (Currenl, Gnaceial babilities) - -
Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment - -
Security deposits received from customer - -
T'rade payables - 40224
Cther frnaneial Lubibees {cuerent) - -
Toel Anancial fiabilities - 500,84
{2 in million)
31-Mar-20
FVTPL Amortised cost

Timancial assets
Brank deposirs i )

Amount reenveeable
Ineerest acerued and nat due on fixed deposits

Sccurity deposits - 232
Unbilled revenues - 2613
Teade reecivables - 126.20
[nvestment {Current, fmiancial assews) - -
Cash and cash equivalents - 23737
Toral finaneial assets - 39232
Finaneial labiities
DBorrowings (non-current, fnancial habilities) - B.58
Bormowgs (Cureent, Boancial bahidines) - -
Puyubles For purchase of property, plint and equipment - -
Secunty deposits - -
Trade payables - 624.36
(ither financial liabilities (cuscent) - -

- 63314

Totat financial liabalies

(T in million)
March 31, 202}

Carrying arnount Fair value

Firtancial asscts
Bank deposits - -
Ameunt ceeoverable " :
Interest accrued and not due on fiued deposies - -
Security deposits 273 273
Unlaifled revenue 13.01 13.04
Trade receivables 139.61 £21.31
Cash and cash equivalenis 15231 152,51
Orther bank balinces - -
Totad finaneial assets 307.86 250.56
Financial labilides
Borrowings (non-curcent, financial Habilitics) B.54 858
Bomowings (cucrent, financial labilities) - -
Payaliles for purchase of propeay, plant and cquipment - -
Security depusits - -
Trade payables 492,26 492.26
Other financial habilities {current) - -

300.84 A1 84

“T'otal financial kahihoes




- CENTRAL BOMBAY CABLE NETWORK LIMITED
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1.3 ADDITIONAL NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Earning per share:

a}  Profit/{f.oss) after Tax

L) Weigheed average No. of Orcloary Shares
JERE
Diluted

o) Nominat Value of Odinacy Share

d)  Earning per Ordinacg share considenng:
Basic
Ihlated

Auditor's Remuneration (Including Legal & professional Charges)
Particulars
Audir fees Rs.

Additional information

Contingent Liabilities not provided for on account ofi
VAT department Entectinment ax

Dhrecens Remunerarion

Larning mn Foreigo Curecncy

Rermittances in Foreign Currency

Expenditure in Foreign Currency
CIF Value of Tmport

31st March-21

(% in million)
312t Murch-20

(712) (1.26)

0.05 0.0

0.05 003

16 10

(142.48) {25.14)

(142.48) (2514
2020-21 21920

0 0

st March-2i

{¥ in million)
3Lt March-20

G656 66,17
6.18 .18
0.05 -

2894 17.54

Dizclosure in Contingent Linbilicy; Honoueable Supreme Court of India it ruling dated 28 February 20109 has beld thal ‘Allowance’ paid by cmployer to s employees, will be
included in the scope of *basic wages” and hence, will be subject to provident fund contributions. As the above said ruling has not presceibed any clasification wrt to its
application, the Comparny 12 in the process of evaluatuny the impact on the provident fund contibutions. Pending clarification and cvaluation of impaer of above said, no

provision for employee contbodon has been recognised in the financial statements for the year ended 3t March 2019

Commitments
Tuture commitments towards capitu] contrbutions - N1II.

Segment Reporting

Segment Reporting as requiced by Accountng Standard -17 issued by the Tastitute of Chartered Accountant of India is net applicable since the Company is in the business of

providing Cabk: TV Secvices i one segment and there 1s no Geographical Sepment.

Related Parties Disclosure:
List of Related Parties

Todinet Service Pvr. Tad, (100 Subsidiary of [CNCT)

STTT KARNAL DIGITAL MEDIA NETWORK PRIVATE LIMITED
S Prirne Uttaranchal Commutication Pyl Lod.

Central Bombay Cable Nerwork Linuted.

St Sagar Digiral Cable Merwork Pravate Limited

St Ciodarl Digreal Communicaton Networl Pt Lids (Foomerly
known i Bargrachh Digital Communieation Network Pre, Lad)
51t Jai Maa Durge Communications Pyt Lid,

St Bhatia Network Eotertatnment Provate Limited

S0 Knshna Degieal Media Private Limited

Sain Jony Digieal Cable Meevork Pavare Timited

Siti Guntar Digital Network Private Limited

Sin Maurya Cable Nee Pes Led, (Sobsidiuny of ICNCL)

ST GLOBAL IV LD,
Tndian Cable Net Company L.
Sin Jend Chgitat Nersork Pur Tid.
Sin Broadband Seovices Pyt Led,
Sai Star Dgral Media P Lad,
Sit Vision Dyigeeal Media vt Lid.
Variety Fotertainment Pve ed.
Siti St Digrital Networek Per. Lid.
Sit Faction Digitad Privare Limited
Siticable Broadband South Lod.
Wire 8 Wirehess Tisal Sacellies Lud.



‘CENTRAL BOMBAY CABLE NETWORK LIMITED
Note: 1 Company Overview and Signjficant Accountng Policies

. v Key Managedal Personncl
POTLURI KIRANMAYEE
SALBALG POTLURL
SANJAY ARYA
VITAY KALLR
VENKATA NAGESWARA THRINATH FUHCA
GAJENDRA JAIN w.e.f 16th March 2020
PUSHPINDER STNGH CHALAL
SANJAY KUNDRA we ko Ioth March 2020
SANDELEP KUMAR ROIIILLA dbl 24h February 2020
DHEERA} GUIMLA 1l 3ed May 2019
DINESH KUMAR GARG ol 23ed Seprember 2019

v DOther Related Padties

Mega Satellite Services Private Limited Lotes Broadband Privaee Limited
3. Gudumu Divya Cable Network

P, Jayane B Bhard

P, Meghna 1} Krishan Mohan

‘Felemedia Agencies Tunuepath

Megn Satelite Services Manasa Network

Cary Cabbe Nerwnek RK Mastler

Transactions with:

Folding Campany- 5iti Network Lid. 2020-21 2019-20
Oiperational Expenses 'ud 3.00 2.97
27.53 v7.08

Management Charges
Pucchase of STB -
0.00 n.1z

Reimbursement of exponses

Pay channel expense payable - 5.49
Pay Channel expenses - i.40
Subsidiary Companics

Siti Guntur Digital Network Pvt Litd

Comuussion fud - -
Advance recerved - “
Siti Siri Drigital Network Pyt Lid

Putchase of 318 17.68 2,84
Sale of 5T 576 2523
Fewd Clugges Paid 411 1.94
Siti Vision Prigital Media Pvt Lid

Salc of 5TB 04 168
Transactioa with- ZEEL, ZMCL

Carriage fee/TLCH Incentive income during the year -ZTREL 12.49 13.79
Camiage fee/TLCN Incentive income dutny the year -AMCL - .56
Credit note Issued dunng the year-ZMOL - a7
Pay channel expense during the year-ZEEL 72.05 7161
With Key Managerial Personnet 2620-21 2019-28
Halary 6.8 618
With other related parties

Salary and Incentives - -
Rent Loz 0.54
Management Charpes 3141 12.64
Commission 481 104
Advance Given 860.00 -

Repayment Received 830.00




"CENTRAL BOMBAY CABLE NETWORK LIMITED
Mote: § Company Overview and Significant Acconnting Policias

Qutstanding as on 31,3.2021
Unsecured Loan

Sin MNerwnrk Limieed #5348 A58
Trade Payable
Sann Cionner Dhpgeeal Nenworl Per, Led, 44,70 445,70
Si MNebwork Limited 25667 37201
M/s Mega Sateliee Services 33 (86
Mepa Satellite Services Private Limired - 295
[Future Path 1.54 -
Telemedia Agencies 032 -
Sid Visiondigieal Media Pret Lid - -
Siti Siri Dipital Networks Pve, Lad. .62 4407
M5 Divya Digital Network 3.40 36,00
Zev Rntertainment Ninterposes Limited (61.20) -
Trade Receivable
Zee Media Corporanion Timited - 0.60
Mepa Satellite Services Povate Limieed 10,49 -
Lacentive/Other Payable:
Mr. Jayant B - -
Mrs. P Mrghna a2 (2
Mrs. Bliar 1% - -
Siri Network Linted IHG.GY 4147
Iy, B Moban - -
5. Gudure -
Amount Payable 1o
Mr. P Sa Tabu ALt 1.70
P. Kiranmayew - 0.02
Tax Expense
The major componenes of income rx for the vear ane as unden {Tin million)
Mar 31,2021 Mar 31,2020
Income tax related to {tems recognised directly in the statement of profit and loss ,
CCUTEENE % - CUrTetie TeRr 60 T
Current tax - Previous year - 0.42)
Dieferred tax charge / (bencfie) (774 [8.23)
Lot (1.14) (0.95)

A reconciliation of the incotne tax expense applicable to the profit before income tax ar statutory rate to the income tax expense at the Company’s effective

income tax rate for the year ended 3 March, 2019 and 31 March, 2018 is as follaws:

Proft belore tax (8.26) (2.21}
Effective tax rate AT AB, 27.82%,
Fax at statutory income tax ate - -
Tax effect on non-dyductible expenses - -
Additinnal allowances for tax purposes - -
Effect of wx on group companies incurring losses
Iiffect of rax cate difference of subsidhaties
Other diffecences (.14 6.1
‘Fax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss {114} 4.14
Pursuant ko the Accounting Standard for ' Taxes on Income’ (AS-22), defeered tax Hability /assces at the balance sheer date is:
2021 2020

Dreferred wx lisbility on account of difference betwcen book value of depreciable assets as per books of account and wrieien 1026 a1
down value a5 per Income Tax ) o
BPeferred tax asseis on account of disallowance under secnon 43 B or aliowed on payment basis. 6.534 6.85

16.80 9.06

Net Deferred Tax Assets/{Liabilities)

Financial risk management cbjectives and policies

The Company’s activaties expose it to & variety of fioancial nisks, including market risk, credit nisk and hgudity risk. The Company’s primary risk management focus is
minimize powential adverse offects of macker osk on s financial performance, The Company™s risk management asscssment and policies and peoecsses are established o
identfy and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to ser appropriate gsk limuts and controls, and to monitor such asks and compliance wich the same. Risk assessment and
management policies and procuesses are reviewed regularly to fleer changes s macket conditions and the Company’s activitics. The Board of Directors 14 responsible for
overscemy the Company’s nsk assessement and management policies and processes




CENTRAL BOMBAY CABLE NETWORK LIMITED
Note: 1 Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policics

Impairmoent of Financial Assets
In accordance with [nd-AS 109, the Company applies Fxpected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impaiement loss for Financial Assets,

BOL @ the differcnce berween all cantracmal cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance wath the contract and all the cash flows thar the Company expects to
receivie. When estimaring the cash flones, e Company consider the following —

+ All contractual teems of the Financial Assels (inchuding prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the asscrs.
+ (Tash Bows from the sale of collateral hetd or other credit enhancements thae are integral 1o the contractual teems.

Trade Reecervables

As 1 practical expedient the Company has adopted “simplified approach’ for recognilion of lifeume expected loss on trade receivables, The estomatte is based on theee years
average default mtes observed over the expected hife of Lhe wade receivables and 15 adjusted for forwacd-looking csimares These average defaubt rates are applied on toral
croddit risk exposure on trade recetvables at che reporting dare to determine lifetime expected ceedie losses.

Oither Fioancial Assers

For recogniton of inpairment Joss on other Finandal Assets and sk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a significant 1acrease in the credit rsk since
initial recognition and if credir risk has increased significantly, inpairment foss 15 peovided.

Past-employment, long term and short term employee benefits

Delined contribution plans

Provident Fund

‘Fhe Company pays provident fund eontributions o pulliely administered peovidear funds as per local cegulations. The Company has no further paymenr obligations onee the
contributions have been pakl, The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expeuse when they
are due, Urepaid conributions are seeognised as an asset to the extent ethat a cash refund or a reduction ia the Furure payments is avalable.

Graruity {Funded)

Actuarial gains and losses ansing from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are credited or charged to the statemeat of other comprehensive income in the
yeaz o which such guins or losses ace derermined.

Other Employec Benefits

Compensated absenees

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one year from the pr date is recognised on the basis of undiscounted value of
estimated amount reguired to be paid or cstimated value of benetit expected to be availed by the emplayees. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or
expeeted to be avaited more than one yvear after the Balance Sheet date s estimated oo the basis of an actuanal valvanon performed by an imdependent actuary using the

projected wt credir nrerhod.

Actuariad pains and losses arising {rom past expedence wd changes in actuacial assumptions are charged o satement of profic and loss in the year in which such gains or

lasses are determined.

Taxation on Income

Tax expense recognised in profit or loss comprises the sum of defersed tax and current lax not recognised i other comprehensive income or dicectly in equity.
Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have beca enacted ot substantively enacted by the end of the reporting poried. Deferred income taxes are

cabeulated using the liability method.

eferved rax assets are eccognised to the oxtent thay it is probable thae the uaderlying tax loss or deductible termpocary difference will be vtilised against future texable income.
This it assessed based on the Company's forecast of Future operating resuits, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific lrnits on the use of any
unused tax loss or cedic. Deferced rax labilities arc generally recognised in full, although [AS 12 Tncome Taxes” specifies limited exemprions. As a result of these exemptions
the Company docs not recogmise delcrved tax on temporary diferences relating o goodwill, or to its investments in subsidiarics,

Provisions, congingent assets and contingent liabilitics

Provisions are recognized only when theee 35 a present obligadon, as 1 result of past events, and when 1 reliable estimare of the amount of oblgation cant be made at the
reporting date. 'These cstimates are reviewed at each ceporting date and adjusted to refiect the current best cstimates, Provsions are discounted to theic present values, where

the trme value of money 15 material.

Contingent habdity 15 disclosed for:
Possible obligations which will be conficmed oaly by (uture events noe wholly within the control of the Company or
Present obligalions arsing from past cvents wheee it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required o settle the obligaton or a reliable esumate
of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent Assets are disclosed when probable and recognised when cealization of income is virrually certain.
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. m. Earming Per Share:

Basic carings per share is caleulated by dividing the ner profic or loss for the period arteibueable to equicy sharcholders fafter deducting preference dividends anet attcibutable
taxcs) by the woeirhted wvecape number of equity shares outsmanding duving rhe perod, Pacidy paad equity shares are reared 25 a fracion of a0 equety share o the eitene that
they ace entided w particpate in dividends celative o a fully pad equity share during the reporting period.

For the purpose of ealeulating dilveed earnings per share, the net profic oc loss for the period astributable to cquity shareholders and the weiglied aveeape number of shaes
cuistanding dueing the period are adjusred for the effeces of all dilutrve porential cquity shares,

n Leascs
Finance leasces
Finance leases, which effectively wansfer to the lessce substantially adl 1he risks and benefits wcidental to ownceship of the leased ftem, are capitalized ar the lower of the fir
watue and present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease rerm and diselosed as beased assers. Lease payments are apportoned between the finunce
charges and reduction of the lease habilig based on che bnpliei eate of retuen. Fatagee chazges are charged diccetly against ineome, Lease management fees, legal charges and

ather initial direct costs are capitabized.

Opcrating leases
Where the Company 1 a fessce, payments on operating lease agreements are recognised 25 an expense on a straiphe-line basis over the lease term unless the payments are
structured woincrease in line with expected general inflation o compensate for the lessoc’s expected inflactonary cose increases. Associated costs, such a3 maintenanee and

insurance, are expensed as incerred,

a. Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty
Financial Statements ate prepaced i accordance wicth GAAP in [ndia which require management to make estmates and assumptions thae aflect the reported balances of
assets, Kalilitics and diselosure of eontingent liabilities at the date of the financiat seatements and reported amounts of income & expenses during the periods. Although chese
estimates and assumptions vsed in accompaaying Linancial Stacements are based upon management’s evatuatdon of relevant facls amd circumstances as of dare of Financial
Statemnents which in management’s opinion ate prudent and reasonalde, actual results may didfer from estimates andassumptions vsed in preparing accompanying Finaneial
Seatements. Any revision 1o accountng esthnates 1s cecogmizedproapectively from the period in which results are known/ marterdalise i accordunee with applicable Accounting
Srandands.

Informadon abour estmates and asswnptons that bave the most signifieant effeel on recogniton and measuremeot of wascs, liabilities, income and expenses s provided

below.

Significant Management Judgements
The followinyg are sipnificant manyrement judgements in applying the Accounting Policies of the Company that have the most significant effect on the Financiat Statements.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets - The extent to which deferred tax assets can b recopmized 5 based on an assessment of the probabitiny of the Company’s future
raxable income agamst which the deferred rax sssets can be ualized.

Evatvation of indicators for Impairment of Assets — "The evadoation of applicability of indicators of nnpairment of assets requires asscssment of several external and
internal factors whicl coutd resudt in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. )

Property, Plant and Equipment - Monagement assess the remaming vseful lrves and residual vabue of property, Plaot and Liquipment and bebieves that Lhe 2ssigned useful
bves and residoal value are reasonuble

Estimation Uncertainty- Information abour estimates and asswnptions that have the most significant effect on recognirion and measucement of assets, habilities, income and
expenses 15 provided befow,

p. Standards issued but not yet effective
End AS 21;
(n Macch 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affaies ("MOCA") has notificd the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rudes, 2018 containing Appendix D o
Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactons and advance consideradon which clanfies the date of the teansacten for the purpose of detwermining the exchange rate o use on
initial reeognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. The amendment will come into

force from April 1, 2018,

Ind AS 115:

On Maech 28, 2008, Ministry of Corporate Affars ("MCA"™) has notfied the Tnd AS 115, Revenuve from Contract with Customers. The core principle of the aew standard is
that an entity should recognise revenue to dupict the teansfer of promised goods or services W customers 1o an amount that roflects the censideration to which the eneity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Further, the new standard requires enhanced disclosures abouc the nature, amount, tening and uncertunty of
revenue and cashy flows arsing feom the entily’s contracts with customers.

The stundard permirs two possible methods of transition:
*  Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standacd wilt be applied reteospectively to each prior reporting pedod presested in accordance with Ind AS 8-
Accountng Policies, Changes in Accountng Estimates and Errons;

®  Retrospeetively with cumulative effecr of ininally applying the standard recopnized at the dage of ininal applicatton (Cumalanve carch - up approach) The effecnive date foc
adoption of Ind A3 115 is financial pecods begning on or afice Aprid 1, 2018, :

[
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{¥ in miition)
March 31, 2026
Carrying amuunt  Fair value
Tinuncial assees
Hank deposits
Aot recoverable
Toterest acerued and not due on fived deposits

Sceurity deposits 272 252
Unbilled revenue 2613 .13
Trade receivables 142,85 126.20
Cash and cash equivalens 23727 23727
Total financiat assets 05497 39232
Financial liabifities

Borrowings {non-gurrent, iinancial habilities) 3.58 3.58
Borrowings {curreat, Anancial liabilites) - -
Pavables for purechase of property, plant and equipment - -
Seeurity deposits - -
‘I'rade payables 624,56 62456
Okher financial habilites (eurment) - -
Totat inaecial kabilines 633,14 633.14

Laoases

Tinaner lease: Company as lessee
{Tin million)
2021

Parriculars + Lass than 1 year 1-3 year ‘T'atal

Lease payments
Finance charges

Operating lease : Company as a lessee

The Company has taken various commerciat premises under operating keases. These leases bave vurying terms, escalavon clawses and reneswad rights. On renewal the wroms of
the keases ate renegotiated. Rent amoeuntng o 2,83 (Maech 31, 2020- ¥3.12) has been debited o standalone statement of profit and loss duriog the year.

Capital inanagement
Risk Managcment

‘The Company’s objectives wheo managing capiral i to safeguard continuity, mainiain a strony credit rating and healtby capieal ratos in order o support its business and
provide adequate retuen w sharcholders through continuing growel, The Company’s overall stratepy remains unchanged from previous resr. The Company sets the amount of
capital tequiced on the basis of anual business and long-tecm opeeating plans which include capital and other stategte investments, The funding requirements are met
theouph 2 mixture of equily, intermal fund geaeraton and other non-current borrowings, The Company’s pokicy 15 to use curcent and aon-cucrent borrowings o mect
antcipated funding requirements. The Company monitars capital on the basis of the gearing ratio which is set debt divided by lotal eupitat {equity phus ner debr) | The
Company is not subject 10 any externally imposed capital requiretrents. Net debt are non-carrent and cureent borrovangs as ceduced by cash and cash equivalents, other bank
balances and curcent investments. Pouity compeses all components including ather comprohensive income.

(T in million)
Particular March 31, 2021 March 3t, 2020
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 5) 152.51 237.27
Current myvestments - -
Magnn money - -
Tetal cash (A} 152,51 23727
Borrowings (non-carrent, financial labilities) - -
Borrowings (current, Anancial liabilitics) {refer noe 15) 13.4% . +5.4%
Current maturities of long-term boceowings - -
Current matrities of (nance lease obligations B -
Total borrowing () 42,49 45.49
Net debt (C=B-A) : (L07.03) {191.78)
Total equity
Total capial fequity + net debsh (I {8.98) (87.35)
11.92 2.20

Geanng ratio {(C/10)
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G Reconcibanon
GST outpue habalieies and GS1 input credits aee subject to reconciliation.

COVID 19 was declwed as a pandemic by WIIO on 11,March, 2020 is eomtinuing o spread across the world and Tadia. Since March 2020, The Indian government has
mmpused 2 21 day nationwide lockdown which was extended in tranches all 3{st May 2020 with relaxations to essental seevices and selected economie aciivities. The company
conuiued 10 operate during dic lockdown providing the eable relevision services to s customers which has been declared 33 an essentiat service, Based on the marmgement
assessment and review of the cucrent economic sceneeio, the management does not expect any signsficant impact of COVID-19 on e company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

ForAAAME& COLLP
CENTRAL BOMBAY CABLE NETWORK LTI

(Formerly known as AAAM & Cos, - -
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS)
FRN: 0813C/C400292 7~ 7. "

Vs

B

(CA RAHUL GUPTA, FCA)
PARTNER R
M.No-412625%

DATE: 23.06.2021
PLACE: NOIDA

JENDRA JAIN
(DIN: 07883767 )
DIRECTOR

RGHTASH JAIN
(DIN: 09210467)
DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Central Bombay Cable Network Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2021

(T in million)

Non—currerft investmenis (INon trade, unguoted) March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Long term investments

(Valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Invesoment in equity instrumcents
30,000 (Previous year 30,000) equity shares of * 2 cach fully paid op of Indian

Cable Net Company Limited 0.06 0.06
0.06 0.06
Less : Provision for diminution in the value of investments - -
0.06 .06
(% in million}
Loans Mazsch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Secuarity deposits
Unsecured, considered good 273 272
2.73 242
£ in million)
Other non-current assets March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(Orther advances
Variety Enteratoment Pyt Led. 39.54 39.54
Security Deposin{CISL) 0.02 (.02
39.56 39.56
€ in million)
Trade receivables March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Unsecured, considesed good 121.31 126.20
Unsecused, considered doubilul 18.30 16.606
139.61 142.85
Less: Credit Loss Allowance 18.30 16.66
121.531 126.20
121.31 126.20
(% in million)
Cash and bank balances March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cash and cash equivalents
(ash on haod 347 3.60
Balances with banky
On current accounts 49.08 63.70
In deposit account (with maturity upto three months) 100.00 170.00
152.55 237.30
(X in million)

Other Financial Assets

Unsccured, considered good
Unbilled Revenue

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

13.01

26,13

13.01

26.13




Consolidated Centeal Bombay Cable Nerwork Limited
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10 Other Current Assets

n

13

Uizl

{nvestment

Accrued Interest

Advaace to Related Party
Balances with staturory authorities
Advance to suppliers

Advance to Timployees

Advance tax

Deposit against VAT demand
Prepaid Expenses

Tndireet Tax

Share capiral

Authorised share capital
50,000 (Previous Year: 50,0000 Bquity Shares of Rs. 10 each

T'otal authorised capital

Issied share capital

50,000 (Previous Year: 30,000) Lquity Shares of Rs. 10 cach
Total issued capital

Subscribed and fully paid up capital
50,000 (Previons Year: 50,000) Tguity Shares of Rs. 10 each

‘Total paid up capital

Other Equity

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: vofit (Loss) for the year
Balances as at the end of the year (A)
Other Comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained carnings

Deferred .Activation Revenue
Gramity/Teave Facashment
Balances as at the end of the year (B)

Balances as at the end of the year (A+B)

Non-Controlling Interests

Minority Intecests

& in million)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
0.06 0.25
10.00 -
247 247
2673 8,74
0.30 0.23
16.99 221
21.33 21.33
022 0.15
1.60 9.64
79.69 64.91
(X in million)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(.50 0.50
0.50 G.50
0.50 0.50
0.50 0.50
0.50 0.50
0.50 0.50
.50 0.50
(€ in million)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
50.26 51.85
(4.30) (159
45.96 50.26
45.96 50.26
(¥ in million)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
33.20 35.37
33.20 35.37




Consolidated Central Bombay Cable Network Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the vear ended March 31, 2021

14 Long-tertn hortowings

(a) Tetm loans from banks (Secured)
Louans and advances from Directors/Related partics- Unzecured
Unsecured loan- Siti Networks Limited

15  Provisians

Provision for gratuity

Provision for compensated absences
Provision for Tax

Payable Against Investment

16 Deferred tax liability {net)

Deferred tax liahility

Fixed agsets: Tmpact of difference between tax deprediation and depreciation/
amortization charged for the financial reporting

(Others

Gross deferred tax liabiliey

Deferred tax asset

Trapact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current
year but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis

Crthers

Gross deferred tax Assets

Net deferred tax assct/(Liabilitics)

17 Other Non-Current liabilities

Deferred Activation Revenue

18  Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro cnterprises and small enterprises
Trade Payables - others
Trade payables - related parties

¥ in million)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
838 8.38
8.58 8.58

{ in million)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
3.53 498
282 2.58
- .24
120 0.20
8.55 8.01
(X in miflion)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2620
16.80 9.06
16.80 9.06
(16.80) (9.06)
(¥ in million)

March 31, 2021

Macech 31, 2020

X in million)
March 31, 2021 Marck 31, 2020
199.87 213.83
295.48 411.48
495.36 627.33
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19

Other Current Liabilitics

FExpenses Payable

Other Taabilities

Advanees from Non Related Partics
Advances from Related Parties
T3S Payable

GST Payable

(Jthers

[ncome received in advance

Provisions

Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences
Provision for Taxation Afe

(in miltion)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
0.37 0.13
36.84 57.44
14.69 12,04}
4549 45,49
5.29 9.56
400 .06
0.63 -
20.87 21.06
148.26 145.74
( in million)

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

0.30 0.30
.19 019
6.60 7.94
7.09 8.43
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22

23

24

25

26

Revenue from operations

Sale of services

Subscription income

Advertisement income

Carriage ncome

Activation and Set top boxes pairing charges
Other operating revenue

Sale of traded goods*

QOther income
Interest income on
Bank deposits
Excess provisions written back

Foreign Curcrency Flucration
(Other non-operating income

Purchases of traded goods

Set rop boxes

Carriage Sharing, Pay Chanunel and Related Cost

Pay Channel Subscription

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, allowances and bonus
Contributions to provident and other funds
Emplovee benefits expenses

Bonus

Sralf welfare expenses

Finance Cost

Interest
Bank charges

(¥ in million)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
52959 535.05
30.49 66.74
197.85 181.31
1.41 2591
765.34 809.01
X in million)
Macch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
4.85 7.94
0.45 -
- 0.18
0.04 -
535 8.12
(X in million)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
7.26 2539
7.26 25.39

(? in million}

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
469,31 451.58
469.31 45]1.58
(& in million)

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

23.91 25.36
2.7 2.11
1.72 1.61
1.47 1.63
042 0.32

29,69 31.03

(¥ in million)

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

0.07 0.17
0.01 -
0.08 0.17
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27

28

Depreciation and amottisation expenses

Depreciation of rangible assets (Refer note 12)

Other expenses

Rent

Office Expenses

Rates and taxes

Communication expenses

Repairs and maintenance

- Network

- Building

- Others

Electricity and water chacges

Loss on sale of Assets

Legal, professional and consultancy charges
Printing and stationtery

R.O.C. Filing fee

Service charges
Travelling and conveyance cxpenscs
Auditors' remuneration®
Commission to payment gateways
Insurance expenses

Provision for doubtful debrs
Penaldes
Commission charges and incenrives
Bad debts

Program production expenses
Other operational cost

Business and sales promotion
Donadon
Security Service Charges
Exchange fluctuation loss (net)
Miscellaneous Expenscs

29 Earnings per share

Loss attributable to equity shareholders

Number of weighted average equity shaces
Basic

Biluted

Nominal value of per equity share (%)
Loss per share fter tax %)

Basic

Dituted

(T in million)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
88.66 85.06
88.66 85.06
(¥ in million)

March 31, 2021

Mazch 31, 2020

2.86 3.12
0.57 (.69
0.01 .17
0.38 0.76
20.99 20,71
0.01 0.02
0.41 0.45
4.95 4.61
- 010
.45 1.38
019 .24
- G.04
0.22 0.08
0.89 2.21
.14 0.19
. 4.65
0.13 .20
5.9 7.7
- 001
38.28 37.43
.25 2.00
1.00 1.68
105.09 135.68
0.03 0.05
- 0.02
0.07 0.08
0.13 1.74
1.00 0.03
183.96 226.11
{T in million)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{6.47) 0.15)
0.50 0.50
0.50 0.50
10.00 10.00
(12.93) (©.31)
(12.93) (0.31)



